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Office of Procurement Services
P.O. Box 7800 • 315 W. Main St., Suite 416 • Tavares, FL 32778
SOLICTATION: Emergency Healthcare Staffing				12/9/2025

Vendors are responsible for the receiving and acknowledging all solicitation addenda. An electronically signed copy of each addendum must be submitted along with the solicitation response. Failure to acknowledge any addendum may result in the submission being disqualified from award consideration.
THIS ADDENDUM DOES ALTER THE PROPOSAL SUBMISSION DEADLINE. THE NEW SUBMISSION DEADLINE IS TUESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2025.
QUESTIONS/RESPONSES
Q90. We understand the County will provide much of the equipment, but can you provide an example of various supplies, medical or otherwise, that may be required of the Contractor? 
A90. This will be based on incident specific needs and requirements. Special needs shelters typically are supplied by DOH-Lake and include supplies such as medical PPE, O2 administration, etc. 
Q91. What is the County’s preferred process and timeline for credentialing and onboarding staff? 
A91. Ideally the Contractor would be able to provide staff rom a pre-identified list of credentialed and onboarded staff from their agency. 
Q92. Will Lake County provide a specific credentialing list for each class if awarded (ex. LPN, NP, MA.)?
A92. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure that all staff provided are properly vetted, licensed, and credentialed before being permitted to work on County property during an emergency event. See Exhibit A Scope of Work, Section 3, Items 3.1.1 and 3.1.2. 
Q93. Are Contractors permitted to add additional classes and rates, i.e. shelter workers, to our pricing schedule? 
A93. Yes. 
Q94. Are there any County-specific orientation or training modules other than those listed that must be completed before deployment?
A94. No. 
Q95. Will the County provide access to any electronic health record (EHR) or incident management system? 
A95. DOH-Lake may choose to share access to the Special Needs Registry for special needs shelters or there may be vaccine tracking systems available for mass vaccination or distribution of pharmaceuticals. This will be based on the incident. 
Q96. Can Contractors negotiate any language or contract requirements after award? If contract changes or exceptions are made, will they impact our score or possibility of being awarded?
A96. The County is willing to negotiate if the requested exceptions are agreeable to the County and are within the parameters of Florida Statutes. 
Q97. Will the contract require compliance with AHCA background check / fingerprinting process?
A97. See Section 3, Item 3.1.2 for this requirement. Background screenings will be required for staff, especially medical staff. Fingerprinting is not requested at this time. 
Q98. Regarding insurance, which lines of coverage will require the waiver of subrogation enhancements? 
A98. General Liability, Comprehensive Auto, and Workers Compensation. 
Q99. Can the County clarify the Scope of Work and expectations of the Contractor(s)? The Scope of Work requests Healthcare Staffing Services, but the Terms and Conditions and Sample Contract terms specifically state that the Contractor(s) must provide all standard equipment, work operations, safety equipment, personal protective equipment, and lighting required or mandated by State, Federal, OSHA, or Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) regulations, as well as providing a superintendent on-site to prevent accidents, and that all materials provided meet OSHA requirements. Additionally, the terms state the Contractor(s) must provide all cleaning supplies to clean up material and debris from site premises. Is Lake County requesting that the Contractor(s) selected for award provide turnkey, comprehensive emergency staffing services, inclusive of any shelters or buildings in which to provide services as well as the provision of any / all equipment, cleanup, safety data sheets, etc.? If this is not the case, and if Lake County is seeking only the staffing services, can Contractor(s) request that some language be removed from the Terms and Conditions and the contract template upon award? At this stage, we would need to better understand the requirements. 
A99. The County’s Exhibit C is the County’s General Terms and Conditions. Not all terms and conditions will apply to the awarded Contractors contract. Only the applicable terms and conditions will be included in the Contractors contract. As stated in A96, the County is willing to negotiate if the requested exceptions are agreeable to the County and are within the parameters of Florida Statutes. 
Q100. Are original signatures required or are scanned signatures accepted for all documents, including the ones requiring a notary? 
A100. Scanned signatures are acceptable. 
Q101. Could the County confirm whether Lake County will supply the collaborative agreements for NP and Physician roles, or if contracted providers are expected to establish and maintain those agreements? 
A101.  All positions are employees of the Contractor. 
Q102. Will the County consider exceptions or redlines to the General Terms and Conditions, such as limitation of liability or indemnification language? 
A102. See A96, A99, and Additional Information below. 
Q103. Will references be contacted via email or phone?
A103. References will be contacted via email.
Q104. There are clear instructions to submit all items in a specific order, so I want to clarify if it is being requested to organize all requested items into one single file for submission or will these need to be uploaded under respective sections separately? 
A104. Contractor can upload documents either individually by section or all together as one document. 
Q105. Looking at the required order of submission, and under Vendor Profile, it shows Completed Attachment 4 – Team Composition Form. The only attachment 4 that we have listed and available is Attachment 4 – Reference Form. Is there a missing attachment or is this something we need to create and inset within the Vendor Profile section? 
A105. This question was answered on Addendum 1 – Q23-A23. 
Q106. How should the pricing be structured – does the County prefer percentage markups only, or will proposals that include fixed hourly rates, tiered markups, surge rates, or volume discounts also be considered? 
A106. See Attachment 3 – Pricing Sheet. 
Q107. Will the County consider proposals that utilize W-2 employees or 1099 independent contractors staffing model? 
A107. No. 
Q108. Section 7.0: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program in Attachment 1 – Submittal Form. Our firm currently holds certification as a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) through NMSDC, could the County clarify whether NMSDC certification may be referenced and accepted in the section of the proposal of if only Florida OSD-issued CMBE certifications are recognized for compliance and evaluation purposes. 
A108. NMSDC certification may be referenced in this section.
Q109. If we do not have OSC certification, can we make mention as N/A in Certification Number field?
A109. Yes. 
Q110. Could the County confirm whether each required attachment must be submitted as a separate, individual response in the file format specified? 
A110. See A104.
Q111. Is this RFP intended for small business Contractors?
A111. Any size business can submit a response so long as the Contractor is capable of providing the services requested by the County per the Exhibit A – Scope of Work.
Q112. Advise if there is a specified page limit for proposal submissions under this RFP. 
A112. There is no specified page limit. 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
For any questions submitted regarding Exceptions and Redlines – See A96 and A99. 
All Addendum (4) must be signed and returned with submittal.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Firm Name:  Click or tap here to enter text.
I hereby certify that my electronic signature has the same legal effect as if made under oath; that I am an authorized representative of this vendor and/or empowered to execute this submittal on behalf of the vendor.  
Signature of Legal Representative Submitting this Bid:  Click or tap here to enter text.
Date: Click or tap to enter a date.
Print Name: Click or tap here to enter text.
Title: Click or tap here to enter text.
Primary E-mail Address: Click or tap here to enter text.
Secondary E-mail Address: Click or tap here to enter text.

Page 2 of 2

Page 2 of 2

image1.jpeg
LAKE

COUNTY FL

REAL FLOR




